
AGENDA 
TOWN OF CLAYTON PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

Monday, October 26, 2015  
6:00 PM 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
111 E. SECOND STREET 

For Information: (919) 553-5002 
 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

A. July, August, and September minutes tabled until November meeting 
 

IV. REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 15-25-01-SP Operations Center Expansion Phase 1 - Major Site Plan  
Request to construct new truck access from Hwy 42, employee parking, truck docks, 
storage space, and stormwater measures as required. This will be an expansion of the 
Town of Clayton’s Operations Center. 

 
B. 13-106-01-SD Hannah’s Creek - Major Subdivision Modification  

Request to create 1 additional lot in the existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision using land 
currently designated as “open space”.  
 

C. 15-51-01-SUP Nick’s Flippin Kids – Special Use Permit 
Request for a special use permit to open “Nick’s Flippin Kids”, a gymnastics facility, in 
an existing & vacant building located in a Special Use District. 
 

D. 15-48-01-PDD NC 42 East - Mixed Use Rezoning/Master Plan 
Request to rezone 45.75 acres from Industrial-Heavy (I-2) and Residential-Estate (R-E) 
to Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU).   
 

E. Adopt 2016 Meeting Calendar 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 



VII. INFORMAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

VIII. ADJOURN 

Page 2 of 2 
 



Staff Report 
15-25-01-SP 

 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board 

October 26, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-25-01-SP 
Project Name: Operations Center Expansion Phase 1 Major Site Plan 

 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165807-67-0901 / 05G02011K 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: Thorough Fare Overlay 
Applicant:  McGill Associates, P.A  
Owner: Town of Clayton 
Location: 653 Highway 42 West, at the intersection of Guy Road and Hwy 42 W  
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting October 16, 2015 
• Sign posted prior to October 16, 2015 
 
REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting major site plan approval to expand the Town of Clayton’s existing 
Operations Center by developing a new employee parking lot, new truck docks, and new storage bays. 
 
SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 2.67 acres 
Existing Use: Town of Clayton Operations Center 
 

 
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 4 



Staff Report 
15-25-01-SP 

 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Office-Institutional & Highway-Business Commercial/Office 
South Highway-Business, Office-Institutional Commercial 
East Office Institutional & Highway-Business Commercial 
West Highway-Business Commercial 

 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: Government Service   

Buildings: 4 Existing, 1 Proposed 

Impervious Surface: 47% 

Proposed Parking: 26 new spaces 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton 

Access/Streets:  There are two existing access driveways. Both are located off of Hwy 42 W. 

Water/Sewer Provider: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton  

 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting major site plan approval to expand the existing Town of Clayton Operations Center. 
The applicant is requesting to develop a new employee parking lot which will provide 26 additional parking 
spaces to the site. The existing vegetation on the western portion of the site is proposed to be removed in order 
to expand on the existing warehouse. This expansion consists of adding a new loading dock, ramp, and pad, 
along with four new covered storage bays. The existing driveway off of Hwy 42 West is proposed to be extended 
in order to connect to the new parking lot and to allow access to the new loading docks and storage bays.  
 

Page 2 of 4 



Staff Report 
15-25-01-SP 

 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

• 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates this site as “Neighborhood Mixed-Use”, with adjacent 
properties as the same or Medium Density Residential. This proposed expansion of the existing 
Operations Center is consistent with the future land use map. 

 
• Unified Development Code 

The proposed development meets all requirements in the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
 
Landscaping and Buffering 
The site meets all applicable elements of the UDC landscaping requirements. The applicant will be preserving 
the existing vegetation along the western and southern property lines. This will serve as a 50 foot buffer 
between adjacent properties.  
 
Environmental 
The site has existing wetlands located on the western most portion of the property. These wetlands will not be 
disturbed.  A temporary silt fence will be provided on the southern portion of the property, along with a 
temporary detention pond.  
 
Access/Streets  
There are two existing access driveways off of Hwy 42 W. The western driveway will be extended further into 
the site in order to provide access to the new parking lot and the new gravel lot, which is where the new truck 
docks and storage bays will be located.  

 
Multi-Modal Access 
New sidewalks will be provided in the new parking lot, connecting it to the main building.  
 
Garbage / Recycling 
No dumpsters are proposed to be added as a part of this expansion. 

 
Architecture/Design 
N/A  
 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
N/A 

Page 3 of 4 



Staff Report 
15-25-01-SP 

CONSIDERATIONS:  
• Planning Board approves major site plans. 

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Site Plan Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.707.  
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following additional conditions be applied to the approval of the Major Site 
Plan for Operations Center Expansion Phase 1: 
 

1. Following board approvals, three copies of the Final Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and Architectural 
Elevations meeting the requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department for Final approval. The conditions of approval shall be recorded on the final approved site 
plan. 
 

2. The development of the site is limited to the site design and uses approved by the Planning Board. 
Modification to the approved site plan shall require review and approval in accordance with Section 
155.707 of the Unified Development Code. 
 

3. A site/landscape inspection by the Planning Department shall be required prior to issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy. All site improvements shall be installed prior to the site inspection. 
 

4.  A Zoning Compliance Permit shall be required prior to issuance of any building permits. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval with conditions of the proposed Major Site Plan (15-25-01-SP).  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Application 
2) Staff Report Maps 
3) Site Plan 
4) Neighborhood Meeting Materials 

Page 4 of 4 











B-3
PF

O-I

R-10

R-E

NC 42 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 RD

  

LEE CT  

DAIRY RD  

GUY RD  

GLENGARIFF LN  

WEXFORD DR  

BELHAVEN DR  
CHELTENHAM DR  

B-3

PF

R-10

O-I

R-10

NC 42 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 RD

  LEE CT  

DAIRY RD  

GUY RD  

WEXFORD DR  

GLENGARIFF LN  

LAKEVIEW DR  

BELHAVEN DR  
CHELTENHAM DR  

15-25-01-SP Operations Center Expansion Phase 1
Request: Develop a new employee parking lot, new truck access from
NC HWY 42, truck docks, and storage space.
Applicant: McGill Associates, P.A. / Town of Clayton
Property Owner: Town of Clayton
Parcel ID Number: 165807-67-0901
Tag #: 05G02011K

NC 42 HWY W

GUY RD  

VOGUE ST  

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 RD

  

STATE AVE  

LAUREL RIDGE DR  WEXFORD DR  

LA
KE

VIE
W 

DR
  

PARK PL  

GLENGARIFF LN  

0 0.350.175
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 700350
Feet

0 700350
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SITE PLANS\Major Site Plans\2015\15-25-01-SP Operations Center Expansion Phase 1\Maps\StaffReportMap.mxd

NC 42 HWY W

LEE CT  

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 RD

  

GUY RD  

WATERFORD DR  

BELHAVEN DR  
CHELTENHAM DR  

Medium Density Residential
Neighborhood Mixed-Use

NC 42 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 RD

  

LEE CT  

DAIRY RD  

LAKEVIEW DR  

GUY RD  

WATERFORD DR  

WEXFORD DR  

GLENGARIFF LN  

BELHAVEN DR  
CHELTENHAM DR  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 600300
Feet

0 700350
Feet

± ±

± ±

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

Produced by: TOC Planning
10/15/2015

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Governor Bev Perdue 
October 6, 2015 
 
 
Dear Clayton Area Property Owner: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to notify you of an application filed by the Town of Clayton involving 
Town Property adjacent to, or in close proximity to, property shown in your ownership by 
Johnston County tax records.  Per Town of Clayton regulations, a neighborhood meeting will be 
held to provide information to area residents about the nature of the proposal.  A representative 
of the Town will be present to explain the rezoning, answer questions, and solicit comments. 
 
Meeting Date:  October 16, 2015 
 
Location:  Town of Clayton Operations Center, 653 NC Hwy 42 W Clayton, NC 27520 
 
Time:  6:00pm    
 
Type of Application:  Major Site Plan 
 
General Description:  Request to expand the Operations Center by adding a new truck access 
from NC Hwy 42, new employee parking lot, truck docks, and new storage space.  
 
Please see the map attached to the back of this letter. If you have any questions prior to or after 
this meeting, you may contact Bill Roark at 919-378-9111.  
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Haley Hogg, CZO 
Town Planner 
Town of Clayton 

 

 

 

P. O. Box 879 - Clayton, North Carolina 27528 - Office (919) 553-5002 - Fax (919) 553-8919  

  Jody L. McLeod                         Bob Satterfield 
       MAYOR                              Art Holder 
                        Jason Thompson 
   Bruce Thompson                  R.S. “Butch” Lawter, Jr. 
TOWN ATTORNEY                           COUNCIL MEMBERS 
                      
     Steve Biggs                          Michael Grannis 
 TOWN MANAGER                       MAYOR PRO TEM 
 
 



 



 
 
 
 

 
October 26, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 13-106-01-SD 
Project Name: Hannah’s Creek Lot 78 – Major Subdivision 

 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165803-21-4008 / 05g03015i 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Applicant:  Curk Lane  
Owner: Darryl D. Evans 
Location: The property is located in the existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision, south of the intersection 

of Corvina Drive, Concord Court, and Vinyard Drive. 
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting October 14, 2015 
• Sign posted October 16, 2015 
• Letters mailed prior to December 22, 2015 
• Newspaper ad posted prior to December 23, 2015 
 
REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval to add one lot (Lot 78) to the 
existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision. 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 6 
 



Staff Report 
13-106-01-SD 

 
SITE DATA: 
Parcel Acreage:   11.89 acres  
Proposed Lot 78 Acreage: 1.3± acres (to be subdivided from the Parcel Acreage) 
Existing Use:   Agriculture 
 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
South Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
East Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
West Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Existing Uses: 77 lot single family subdivision 

Proposed Uses: Single family residential dwelling 

Buildings: One  

Number of Stories: Maximum height of 35 feet 

Impervious Surface: Maximum 4,288 SF – which is identical to adjacent lots in subdivision.  

Required Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Proposed Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Access/Streets:  New driveway off of Concord Court 

Water/Sewer Provider: Public water and septic 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton Fire Department 

 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 
 



 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat (major subdivision) approval to add one lot (Lot 78) to an existing 
subdivision. This subdivision utilizes septic fields, and is generally limited in density by the availability of soil that 
will accommodate septic drain fields. With the completion of the platting of Phase 3 of Hannah’s Creek 
subdivision, the developer has found additional land that will accommodate a septic field, and is proposing to 
use that land to add one more lot to the subdivision. 
 
The original Preliminary Subdivision Approval from the County identifies the tract of land that Lot 78 will be 
separated from as “Permanent Open Space”. All recorded Plat Book pages for this site identify this parcel as 
“Reserved for Future Development”.   The granting of the creation of Lot 78 will reduce the overall open space 
available for the subdivision. 
 
In 2014, a minor subdivision application was approved for this site by the Planning Department. This minor 
subdivision was granted administratively (as allowed by Code) based on the recorded Plat Book images, which 
designate the land that Lot 78 will be separated from as “Reserved for Future Development”. The original, 
preliminary subdivision approval from the County (which shows “Permanent Open Space”) was not consulted at 
the time this approval was granted. Staff believes that a clerical error occurred at the County during the plating 
process, and the plat reviewer missed that the area shown as “Permanent Open Space” and allowed it to be 
recorded as “Reserved for Future Development”.  Since Hannah’s Creek is an existing subdivision, it was 
determined that the addition of a lot (Lot 78) should have triggered a major subdivision application which 
requires approval by Town Council. The 2014 minor subdivision approval was recently determined by the 
Planning Director to have been issued in error. To rectify this, the developer agreed to pursue a major 
subdivision application in order to create Lot 78. Major subdivision applications require neighborhood meetings, 
and are decided in a quasi-judicial hearing by Town Council. 
 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

• Comprehensive Plan 2040 
The request is consistent. 

 
• Master Plan (if any) 

The request is not consistent with the Preliminary Plat Approval that was issued by the County in 2006, 
which show the parcel as “Permanent Open Space”. This approval in the County occurred before the 
subdivision and this parcel were incorporated into Clayton’s ETJ in 2008.  
 
The request is consistent with the current recorded Plat Book which designates the area as “Reserved 
for Future Development”.  

 
• Unified Development Code 

The proposed development will be consistent with the Unified Development Code (UDC).  Individual lot 
development specifications including building placement, driveway placement, etc. will be required to 
meet all Town standards.  

 

Page 3 of 6 
 
 



 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
Uses surrounding the subject property are identical to what is being proposed on Lot 78. 
 
Landscaping and Buffering 
N/A. 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
When this development was approved in the County, the required open space for an open space subdivision 
was 10%. Per Town of Clayton UDC, the required open space of a comparable open space subdivision is 12.5% of 
net site area. Net site area excludes Resource Conservation Areas from the calculation. This new addition to the 
existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision occurs on land that was originally intended as open space for the 
subdivision.  
 
As of the writing of this staff report, enough information is not available in order to determine if the addition of 
another lot meets the 12.5% open space requirement. The addition of lots must meet the Town requirement for 
open space. 
 
According to correspondence with the applicant, no recreation fees were ever paid to the County. This indicates 
that this subdivision was approved as an open space subdivision, and the provision of open space was a 
requirement of the original approval. 
 
As part of this application, the developer has proposed to add a natural surface “nature trail” through the 
remaining open space south of the proposed Lot 78. This trail would have two access points, each of which 
would be 30’ pedestrian easements, as required by Code. The easement alongside Lot 78 would coincide with an 
existing 20’ wide drainage easement. 
 
Environmental  
N/A 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 
 



 
Access/Streets  
Access will be provided via a new driveway off of Concord Court. 

 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
None. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• The applicant is requesting Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval for Lot 78.   
• This approval is subject to approval of SUP 2013-71.   

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Subdivision Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.706.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff  
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied: 
 

1. The Conditions of Approval shall be inserted into the Site Plan, and three clean copies shall be delivered 
to the Planning Department for final approval. 

2. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the specifications of the 
approved Preliminary Subdivision Plan.  

3. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation, except that Capacity fees shall be paid 
prior to issuance of building permits. 

4. The nature trail shall be constructed or bonded prior to the issuance of building permits. 

5. Any proposed pedestrian easements shall be revised so as to not overlap drainage easements. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1) Application and application materials, including site plan 
2) Staff report maps 
3) Neighborhood meeting materials from applicant 
4) Preliminary subdivision approval from County (approved 2006) 

Page 5 of 6 
 
 



5) Plat book images 
6) Minor subdivision approval (approved 2014)  
7) Materials from Hannah’s Creek HOA 

a. letter of opposition, petition, and neighborhood meeting minutes – Hannah’s Creek Community 
b. Letter of opposition – Katherine Pagano 
c. Letter of opposition – Steve Warren 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 
 













































US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  

STEPHANIE LN  
CH

AR
DO

NN
EY

 DR
  

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

LIN
'S 

PL
  

13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Lot 78 Major Subdivision
Request: Approval to add one lot to existing Hannah's Creek subdivision
Applicant: Curk Lane
Property Owner: Darryl D. Evans
Parcel ID Number: 165803-21-4008
Tag #: 05g03015i

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

SC
OT

T C
T  

NIKOL WAY  

CONCORD CT  

0 0.350.175
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SUBDIVISIONS\MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS\2015\13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Major Subdivision Modification\Maps\StaffReportMap.mxd

US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

LIN
'S 

PL
  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 950475
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

± ±

± ±

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

Produced by: TOC Planning
10/15/2015

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay



US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

US 70 HWY W

CORVINA DR  

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

MERLOT CT  

13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Lot 78 Major Subdivision
Request: Approval to add one lot to existing Hannah's Creek subdivision
Applicant: Curk Lane
Property Owner: Darryl D. Evans
Parcel ID Number: 165803-21-4008
Tag #: 05g03015i

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

0 0.30.15
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 900450
Feet

0 900450
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SUBDIVISIONS\MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS\2015\13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Major Subdivision Modification\Maps\StaffReportMap2.mxd

CA
BE

RN
ET

 CT
  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CONCORD CT  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  MEADOW CT  

CORVINA DR  
Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 600300
Feet

0 900450
Feet

± ±

± ±

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

Produced by: TOC Planning
10/15/2015

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay































































































 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
March 4, 2014 
 
Curk Lane 
True Line Surveying 
205 W Main Street 
Clayton, NC 27520 
 
 
Re:  MSD 2014-07 Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Minor Modification 
 
 
Dear Mr. Lane, 
 
On February 18, 2014, the Planning Director approved the above referenced modification to the 
previously approved subdivision (Hannah’s Creek Phase 1) subject to the following conditions of 
approval:    
 

1. The development of the site is limited to the site design and uses approved by the 
Planning Director (plans with stamped approval dated 2/18/14). Modifications of 
the approved plans shall require additional review and approval, subject to 
requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

Thank you for your cooperation in the review and approval process for this development.  If you 
should have any questions regarding this matter please feel free to contact the Planning 
Department. 
 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Emily Beddingfield, AICP 
Town Planner 
 
 
cc:  Beth Franson, GIS Analyst 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 1 
 





1

Jay McLeod

From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com>
Sent: Monday, October 19, 2015 1:04 PM
To: Jay McLeod
Subject: Hannah's Creek Community plea
Attachments: Hannahs Creek Community Letter_10192015_final.pdf; HC petition.pdf; True Line 

Meeting Minutes_10142015_final2.pdf; Attachment #1 - 13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek 
Application.pdf; Attachment #2 - HTR Marketing .pdf

Hi Jay, 

 
Attached, please find the Hannah's Creek Community submission of concern in response to the  Major Subdivision 
application submittal by Darryl D Evans Inc. 

 
We respectfully request that you share the attached information with the Town Planning Board in preparation for the 
October 26, 2015 Public Hearing. 

  

We respectfully request that James Libscomb recuse himself from this application process as we deem it to be a conflict 
of interest as he is an ETJ Alternate, Town Planning Board member and the listing Realtor representing homes for sale 
within the Hannah's Creek subdivision. 

  

Best regards, 

  

Hannah's Creek Community 



10/19/2015 
 
Greetings Town of Clayton Planning Board, 
 
The neighborhood of Hannah's Creek respectfully submits the following to the Town of Clayton Planning 
Board (Planning Board) to be considered prior to the meeting to be held Monday, October 26, 2015 to 
discuss Darryl D. Evan’s Major Subdivision application for the Hannah’s Creek Subdivision. The following 
is meant to be a summary of our community’s concerns regarding the application for Major Subdivision 
by Darryl D Evans, Inc. for the proposed Lot 78.   The items presented in this letter relate to both 
environmental concerns regarding the prospective changes to support proposed Lot 78 as well as the 
verbal commitments made by Darryl D Evans, Inc. over the last decade to use the proposed Lot 78 as the 
common area for the community.  
  
Many community members (especially in properties near the proposed Lot 78) have drainage and 
related environmental concerns regarding the proposed lot change. Some of these concerns have come 
to light following the meeting with True Line.  The major points of contention related to this concern 
include: 
  
 Many properties that border proposed lot 78, the wetlands, and “new” common area  have 

frequent water drainage issues and are concerned this could potentially make them worse.  
Properties that do not border the immediate proposed lot #78 have also expressed that there are 
drainage issues with their properties and are concerned that the additional lot could cause 
additional drainage issues. 
 

 The major subdivision application insufficiently addresses concerns with answers to important 
questions that are part of the Major Subdivision - Preliminary Plat Requirements checklist.  Instead 
of providing clear answers they are instead marked as "N\A”. Some examples of these questions 
include 31, 39,  41, 42,48, 49, 54  of the Major Subdivision application submitted by Darryl D. 
Evans, Inc (See Attachment #1 – Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Major Subdivision application). 
 

 Will the storm water conveyance and retention with this proposed change be adequate for 
pollution, sewage, and water flow control to prevent flooding and or contamination of nearby 
structure and properties? 
 

 There is concern that the percolation tests were conducted at a time of unusual drought and not 
indicative of actual typical environment conditions experienced in our neighborhood. 
 

 There are concerns that having a septic field so close to other property owners back yards, 
wetlands, and areas that experience water drainage issues that problems could results in serious 
environment and health concerns. 

 
Due to the incompleteness of important questions on the form, there are concerns that there could be a   
negative environmental impact to the community. 
  
Additionally, a major source of contention regarding the proposed Lot 78 is that Darry D Evans, Inc. had 
made commitments to the community that proposed lot #78 was a neighborhood common area that 
would be used as a common area for development by the HOA.  Buyers through all three phases of 
development of Hannah's Creek were consistently told that the property in question was to be the 



common area.  Specifically, it was suggested that the residents of Hannah’s Creek could use that 
property for a playground, pool, or whatever the desires of the HOA. For many buyers this was a 
significant selling point and led to their choice in purchasing a home in Hannah's Creek because 
comparable nearby neighborhoods had developed community common areas.  This commitment to 
buyers continued even after Darry D Evans, Inc. made plans for the proposed Lot 78.  Over the years, 
this was reinforced by HOA Dues used to insure and maintain the property.  Additionally, sales material 
continued to indicate the space was open space and/or permanent open space (see Attachment # 2 – 
Platt Maps). In many cases this commitment was made by HTR Realty, representatives of Darryl D. Evans 
Inc.  In some cases, personal conversations with Darryl Evans were made to community members during 
and/or after the sales process. Although Hannah’s Creek Subdivision development was delayed, it was 
never suggested that the community common area (now proposed lot 78) would ever be anything other 
than an eventual developed common area.   The proposed change of status of proposed lot #78 was 
never communicated to the community directly or through the Home Owners Association.  The HOA 
indicated as recently as the last community meeting that the lot was still available for future HOA 
development pending funding by the HOA. 
  
In response to our concerns Darryl D. Evans, Inc. has proposed an alternate common area indicated as a 
"nature trail".  However, the proposed area is very problematic for numerous reasons and far from a fair 
exchange.  The proposed "nature trail" resides within a very undesirable location including wet, swampy 
and muddy areas.  Parts of the proposed "nature trail" are classified restricted wetlands, cannot be 
developed, and has limited accessibility through easements mostly encompassing drainage easements 
and gas pipeline easements.  There are additional concerns over safety, dangerous refuse that still exists 
in the area, and the high cost of the very limited development that could be done within that proposed 
common area. The proposed area does not allow any type of development beyond a dirt trail.  The 
current lot is centrally located, convenient, ready for development, and safe and easy to secure -  a far 
cry from the proposed common area which is exactly why it was so attractive to current and prospective 
buyers to the community.  Lastly community members have concern over home value for a 
neighborhood such as ours with $300k+ homes without an attractive common area and no potential for 
one in the future.   
  
Over the years the community has waited patiently for the development of the common area despite 
routinely being told that we should wait for future phases of the neighborhood to be completed. After 
so many years the community feels deceived by Darryl D Evans Inc. and that Darryl D Evans Inc. has 
reneged on his commitments to the community.  Additionally, the proposed lot 78 has continued to be 
advertised as a common area even after plans were already made to develop a house on the current 
common area.  Hannah's Creek community has majority support for the position stated in this letter as 
demonstrated by a petition letter recently submitted to Darryl D Evans, Inc. and by the universal 
response at the True Line Neighborhood meeting.  Throughout this process, and in unrelated dealings, 
Darryl D Evans Inc. has routinely responded to inquiries in an unhelpful, vague, callous, and dismissive 
manner as was plainly demonstrated at the True Line Neighborhood meeting.  
  
With all of these factors in mind, the Hannah's Creek community feels that approval of this request by 
Darryl D Evans Inc. would be a detriment to the community and cause for potential environmental 
concerns. For the good of our community we would respectfully request that you deny Darry D. Evans 
Inc.'s application for Major Subdivision. 
  
Respectfully, 
  



Hannah's Creek Community 
  
 



1 
 

True Line Meeting Minutes (submitted by Hannah's Creek Community) 

Meeting held Oct 14, 2015 at 6pm in Hayes room at the Clayton Center due to insufficient space at True 

Line for those in attendance.  

Those in attendance: Approximately 40 Hannah's Creek residents (signatures of everyone in attendance 

obtained by Curk Lane from True Line Surveying), Curk Lane (True Line Surveying), Darryl D. Evans 

(developer), Lawyer (name unknown) representing Mr. Evans, Darryl D. Evans father, James Lipscomb 

(realtor from Home Towne Realty), Jay McLeod (Planner from Town of Clayton), Drew Jackson (staff 

writer for Clayton News Star). 

Purpose of Meeting: To satisfy Town of Clayton regulations placed upon Darryl D. Evans, Inc. to provide 

information to area residents impacted by its land use proposal. Meeting was to provide information to 

residents regarding the nature of the proposal, explain the application, answer questions, and solicit 

comments. 

Topics: 

1. Explanation of proposed plan to increase Hannah’s Creek’s from 77 Lots to 78 lots. 

True Line Surveying (Curk Lane) presented Darryl D. Evans, Inc.’s proposal for adding a new proposed lot 

to the Hannah’s Creek Subdivision.  This is referred to as Lot 78 on the submitted application.   Mr. 

Lane explained that phase 1 and phase 2 of s/d were under Johnston Co jurisdiction and that phase 3 

had to be approved by Town of Clayton due to ETJ. Mr. Lane explained that proposed lot #78 was 

originally undeveloped due to not having enough perkable land in phases 1 and 2.  Mr. Lane informed 

that once land was purchased and acquired for phase 3, there was enough perkable space now for 

proposed lot #78 to be built. Mr. Lane informed residents that the septic lines for proposed lot 78 will be 

in the land that was acquired in phase 3. He explained that adding proposed lot 78 would require a 

Major Subdivision application and approval from the Town of Clayton instead of a Minor Subdivision 

classification as was originally submitted.  

Curk Lane and Darryl Evans explained that at the outset of developing the neighborhood, Lot 55’s overall 

space extended substantially further back to abut up to Highway 70. At that time, Lot 55’s septic was 

obligated to be set further back closer to Highway 70 (in relation to where Lot 55’s residence now sits); 

however, as time has passed, that obligation is now not in effect anymore. Thus this allowed for the 

additional space located closer to Highway 70 (originally within Lot 55’s parameters) to be changed. This 

change now constituted making this tract of land (formerly within Lot 55) the open and recreational use 

space for residents and in turn making proposed Lot 78 available for construction of a new house. 

2. Land advertised and marketed as common area to residents and potential buyers.  

Numerous residents in attendance stated that proposed lot 78 has always been portrayed as common 

area for the entire community of Hannah’s Creek.  Residents provided recollection of Mr. Evans and 

HTR realtors (James Lipscomb and Jerry Jones) personally referring to this area as the subdivision’s 

common area during the sale of their respective homes.  Residents stated that they were told by Mr. 



2 
 

Evans and realtors, Mr. Lipscomb and Mr. Jones, that the land could potentially have a playground built 

on it or that the residents could build a pool on it if they desired. Resident Joshua Carlisle (phase 1), 

stated that Mr. Evans told him the residents would be able to decide what they wanted to use the 

common area for once there were enough homes in the s/d and thus, enough HOA dues collected to use 

for such decision. 

Resident Malinda Johnson (phase 1) introduced herself and her husband to Mr. Evans, and stated they 

were the first home buyers in the s/d.  She asked of Mr. Evans, "Do you remember us?" to which Mr. 

Evans answered "yes".  She stated and directed to Mr. Evans that he told her (and Jay Johnson) face to 

face, that the tract of land currently proposed as lot 78, was our common area and a playground would 

be placed on the property for resident use. She asked Mr. Evans if he remembered saying this to them.  

Mr. Evans shrugged his shoulders and stated "Did you get it in writing?"  Mr. Evans also remarked, that 

he may have mentioned that in general conversation. 

Resident, Misty Jackson (phase 1), stated that a plat map proposing Lot 78 was constructed on Dec 15, 

2013 and informed Mr. Evans that multiple residents from phase 3, whom purchased after this date, 

were still being told that the tract of land was a common area for the residents of the subdivision by his 

representatives from HTR. When Mr. Evans was asked why this happened, he stated that was HTR's fault 

and he didn't know why they advertised it that way. Mr. Evans was asked directly if he informed the 

realtors (Mr. Lipscomb and Mr. Jones) that the tract of land was not to be a common area any longer. He 

replied he never informed them of this change. When asked why he didn't notify HTR, he stated "The 

plats are public record. They can go to Smithfield and look at them." Residents in attendance were upset 

by this response and many stated that it was not feasible or obligatory to remain up to date with plat 

changes – public record or not. Mr. Evan’s veracity and candor were questioned time and again as to 

why what he and/or his contractors/real estate agents told residents at that time was now being 

changed for Mr. Evan’s financial benefit. 

Mr. Evans said multiple times that proposed Lot 78 was listed as reserved for future construction.  

When informed that some surveys and plats, that are registered, label the area as open space, he 

shrugged his shoulders.  Mr. Evans was informed and shown a survey map that was available in the 

marketing mailbox at the front of s/d for potential buyers.  Map showed the land to be "open space".  

When asked why it was advertised this way, he blamed HTR for advertising it in error. Several residents 

questioned time and again whether the verbal advertisement of “common area” (proposed Lot 78) as a 

future playground or pool was a binding contract.  

As more and more residents stated they were always told the land was our common area, Mr. Evans 

replied multiple times "I couldn't know what might happen with that land 10 years later." 

3. Proposed new open space plan presented to residents.   

With the new proposed lot #78, Mr. Evans informed residents that he would be constructing a nature 

trail between proposed Lot 78 and Lot 52 for residents to access the proposed open space.  A 

preliminary plat map was presented by Mr. Lane. Residents asked how the nature trail would be 

constructed and for more details.  Mr. Evans responded it would be "natural" and that there would not 



3 
 

be any asphalt or concrete used in its construction due to impervious surface requirements. Residents 

asked for specifics for the nature trail's construction.  Mr. Evans never answered. Mr. Evans informed 

residents that the 20 ft drainage easement would be included in the required 30 ft access to open space. 

Majority of proposed open space is located on opposite side of the wetlands.  Mr. Evans notified he 

would not be constructing a bridge for residents to have access to the open space.  He informed the 

residents they could walk through the wetlands to obtain access to proposed open space.  This open 

space is located on the southeast of the subdivision corner abutting Hwy 70 and the Piedmont gas 

pipeline. 

Mr. Evans informed that the open space would be deeded to the HOA after he completes the s/d.  

Residents voiced concern about how the homeowners (HOA) would maintain these proposed open 

spaces, not knowing how wide the nature path would be in order to get mowers through and not having 

access to the open space, landlocked by the wetlands.  Concern was also expressed over the expense 

of such upkeep to the HOA once it is deeded over. Malinda and Jay Johnson explained that Caterpillar, 

his local employer, attempted to install a similar nature path walkway on their facility grounds and 

quickly determined the maintenance was too much to adequately handle. The weed growth became a 

major problem and Caterpillar ultimately decided to cancel any further maintenance. Many residents 

complained the proposed nature trail Mr. Evans had planned would end up with the same results. 

Residents voiced that the new proposed open space was not a fair, comparable, or suitable exchange for 

the land that was now advertised as the common area.  

Many residents voiced concern over the open space being adjacent to wetlands and going through 

woods that are tick and snake infested. Concern was raised that the only flat, not waterlogged, tick or 

snake infested proposed open space is located on the Piedmont Natural Gas line easement and that 

nothing permanent would be able to be constructed there.  Concern was raised that a bulk of the 

proposed open space is not usable space, and that Mr. Evans had proposed deeding over land that will 

not be able to serve its intended purpose of a recreational space for residents.   

4. Reimbursement of HOA funds  

Residents voiced that HOA funds had been used for years to maintain lawn and carry liability insurance 

for the tract of land thought to be a common area, but was always owned by Mr. Evans. Further 

discussion arose of how some years back the proposed Lot 78, which the residents believed to be their 

common area, contained large dirt piles. After a long period of time residents complained that the dirt 

piles needed to be removed. Mr. Evans explained he removed the dirt piles as requested by the 

residents and that when he turned over the maintenance of the neighborhood’s entrance and the 

“common area” (proposed lot 78) to Kohn Ell, he ensured that it would be kept visibly nice. Mr. Evans 

explained he did this for the residents; however, if it were up to him he would have simply 

“bushwhacked” the grass twice a year which would have been less cost. Residents countered Mr. Evans’ 

claim that keeping the proposed Lot 78 groomed and visibly nice innately helped him with selling more 

properties in the neighborhood.  If he left the area unkempt and overgrown he would be in violation of 

the covenants. 



4 
 

Residents asked Mr. Evans if he would be reimbursing the HOA for these expenditures. Mr. Evans 

responded he would reimburse the HOA, but was not obligated to. This contention of not having to 

reimburse the funds was seconded by one of Mr. Evan’s representatives. No monetary amount was 

discussed or agreed upon. 

Resident Kathi Pagano raised the concern that the community has not received the HOA annual 

financials from 2006 to 2012.  Mr. Evans stated that no one ever asked for them.  Resident Gerald Lee 

stated that he had.  Ms. Pagano stated she had asked in the first HOA meeting.  Mr. Evans stated that 

we could obtain them from Kohn-Ell. Ms. Pagano replied “back to 2006?”  Mr. Evans replied “yes”.  

Ms. Pagano said “I had already asked Kohn-Ell for them and they said they do not have them prior to 

2013.”  Mr. Evans replied “Well, I’m not an accountant.”     

5. Increased potential for more crime in Hannah's Creek 

Mr. Evans was informed that homes adjacent to the gravel road side of s/d have been accessed from the 

rear and broken into due to the ease of access from the gravel road.  It was also notified that car 

break-ins and theft increased when the 70 bypass was constructed due to ease of access.  Concern was 

raised that adding a nature trail that runs directly behind the homes on Chardonney Drive and Concord 

Court could potentially increase ease of access for crime to occur.  

6. Homeowner Valuation Impact 

Residents expressed that the land was advertised as a common area and enticed sells. Many residents 

claimed they purchased their specific lot based on this information.  Concern was raised that home 

values could decrease with this land being taken away and used to build a new home instead.  

Resident Kathi Pagano requested of Mr. Evans to provide a homeowner valuation impact study from an 

entity with no ties to him.  Mr. Evans did not give an answer as to whether he would provide this.  

7. Drainage Easement  

There was discussion regarding water backing up and not flowing well in drainage easement between 

Lot 52 and proposed Lot 78.  Concern was raised regarding how the water will flow once the retention 

pond is filled at the completion of construction.  

There was a discussion regarding 20 ft drainage easement between Lots 46 and 47.  One concern 

raised was that the storm runoff would be directed to the proposed septic field for proposed Lot 78 

which runs alongside the proposed nature trail.  Questions were raised concerning sanitation and if 

this would create more standing water. Concern was raised about how this would impact the proposed 

accessibility and use of the proposed trail and access to proposed open space.   

8. Impervious Surface 

A question was raised regarding the impervious surface for each lot. Mr. Lane and Mr. Evans explained 

that each lot was allotted 4,288 square feet of impervious surface. Mr. Lane and Mr. Evans assured 

those in attendance that the new lot in question at proposed Lot 78 would not affect the current 



5 
 

impervious surface amount and that each lot would still remain at 4,288 square feet. 

Resident Malinda Johnson asked if Mr. Evans would be open to residents making a fair offer to purchase 

proposed Lot 78. Ms. Johnson explained this offer was something that she just thought of and it would 

have to be agreed upon by the residents, but to hypothetically mitigate the current situation, she posed 

the question to Mr. Evans. Mr. Evans responded he would have to think about that. Mr. Evans was asked 

how much the lot would be in price. Mr. Evans responded he would have think about that and get back 

with residents at a later time. 

9. Maintenance of proposed open spaces 

Questions were raised regarding who is obligated to maintain these spaces.  Land is currently owned 

by developer and not HOA. Many residents were mistakenly under the impression that proposed Lot 78 

and other open spaces (entrance to Hannah’s Creek) were already deeded over and owned by the HOA. 

Mr. Evans explained this was not true and his company was the owner. Residents countered that they 

should no longer, currently and prospectively, be funding any maintenance of these spaces. Mr. Evans 

gave no response and no resolution was obtained at this time.  

10. Minutes 

Resident Misty Jackson asked who was taking the minutes and Mr. Lane, who was presenting the 

meeting stated he would take care of the minutes.  Jay McLeod said he was keeping notes.  The 

residents were informed that the minutes would be available. 

11. Petition 

Darryl D Evans was asked if he received a copy of the Petition in the private meeting he had with HTR, 

James Libscomb and two (2) HOA Board Members and he confirmed receipt of the Petition. 

   



































-----Original Message----- 
From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com> 
To: jwmcleod <jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org> 
Sent: Mon, Oct 19, 2015 4:42 pm 
Subject: Proposed Lot 78, Hannah's Creek Lot 52 submitting questions and concerns for Oct 26 Hearing 

 

Katherine Pagano 

66 Concord Court (Lot #52, Phase 1) 

Clayton, NC 27520 

  

October 19, 2015 

  

Town of Clayton 

111 East Second Street 

Post Office Box 879 

Clayton, NC 27528 

  

Attn : Jay McLeod 

Re: Major Subdivision Application by True Line Surveying for Darryl D. Evans for proposed lot #78 
in Hannah’s Creek Subdivision, Clayton, NC 

   

Dear Jay McLeod, 

  

With regard to the above referenced subject matter and the attached, I want to share concern and input to 
the Planning Board for consideration and review at the October 26, 2015 Public Hearing. 

There are inherent water drainage issues that occur from the north side of Merlot Court, to the east side 
of Vinyard Dr and carry through to Concord Ct. The 20’ drainage easement that sits between lot 52 and 
Proposed lot 78 is always wet and marshy even when it is not raining. When it rains the water flow can 
easily get to 5’ wide and 24 to 30” deep in this drainage easement. There is a huge sediment / retention 
pond that sits directly behind lot #52 and historically full of water and loaded with cat tail vegetation. Once 
that sediment / retention pond is filled by the developer, it will take some time for the topography to settle 
and the natural water flow re-establish itself. How can any perk or storm water evaluation occur for 
proposed Lot #78 when the abutting environment is knowingly going to change as soon as the sediment / 
retention pond is filled. 

The proposed Lot 78 hand out (showing walking trail and septic layout) in the True Line Meeting on 10/14 
is not the same map that is submitted in the Oct 1, 2015 application. The major subdivision application 
was made available after the True Line Meeting on 10/14 so here are some questions with regard to the 
application: 

  

Section: 

Required information: 

6. Preliminary Plat Subdivision Requirements Checklist form, completed and signed is not checked off. 

Page 1 of 3 
 

mailto:keithpagano@aol.com
mailto:jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org


11. Wastewater allocation request OR verification of wastewater allocation is marked N/A - How come? 

Section: 

Major Subdivision - Preliminary Plat Requirements Checklist 

- Item 11 – Why is this section marked as N/A? 

-Item 11 Within Town Limits of ETJ appears to be checked N/A but the actual check mark does not 
appear in the box allocated.  Isn't Hannah's Creek in the ETJ? 

-Item 11 - Sewer provider is not stated 

-Item 11 -impervious for overall development and lot is not indicated 

Item 11- Maximum allowable impervious is not shown 

- Item 11 – Existing use vs proposed use not provided sufficiently and is misleading.  

- The last plat map (dated Feb 21, 2005) of the application does not represent the current open space 
boundaries nor its characteristics.  

-The wetlands are depicted in an area that differ from the recorded Plat. 

-.Lot 55 is not accurately depicted plat map dated Feb 21, 2005. This lot was changed prior to the official 
recording of Phase 1 and should have no direct correlation/decision on Phase 3 or the newly proposed 
Lot 78. 

- Lot 78 does not indicate septic layout or proposed community area changes. 

-Item 19 – There is insufficient information of existing and proposed rights-of-way, easements, and public 
use areas. Existing clear land “common” areas have been replaced by a combination of wetlands, heavily 
wooded areas, non-buildable land, or areas not accessible to the community. 

- Item 29 – Location, purpose, and dimensions of non-residential areas are not spelled out appropriately 
and therefore, do not designate responsible parties. 

-Item 31 – Proposed stormwater retention/detention features and dimensions are not reflected. This is an 
area of known water drainage/retention problem areas that also is near a protected wetland and a current 
retention pond. 

- Item 38 and 39, 40. – No information on landscaping shared. 

- Item 41 – There are no details regarding the topography, but the application (and the presentation 
provided by True Line Surveying proposes swapping out clear, open land with combined land consisting 
of wetlands, heavily wooded, gas line easements and low lying drainage easement areas. 

- Item 42 – Missing information on water/sewer and pipeline gas infrastructure easements. 

- Item 49 – Missing existing and proposed changes to drainage structures. There is currently a retention 
pond in the drainage easement closest to protected wetlands. 

-Item 51 – Missing existing and proposed easements for the plan presented by True Line on 10/14. 
Again, the application does not match the proposal presented in the meeting on 10/14. 

-Item 54 – Missing storm water management system information in an area that contains a 
retention/detention pond next to wetlands that have a history of drainage issues. 

As mentioned above, the plat maps presented in the application are not accurate for the current existing 
neighborhood. Also, the proposed plat changes proposed for Lot #78 and the new neighborhood common 
areas do not represent what True Line/Darryl D. Evans Inc presented during the 10/14 meeting. 

There is a page omitted from the packet in the “Town of Clayton Subdivision Approval Sub 08-01 
Granted” section. It is page 2 of 4. 

  

Can the Town confirm with the following department if a determination of stream buffer was applied for:  

Page 2 of 3 
 



James R. Graham Jr. 

Environmental Specialist 

Raleigh Regional Office 

NCDENR-Division of Water Resources 

3800 Barrett Drive 

Raleigh, NC 27609 

(919) 791-4256 

  

James.Graham@ncdenr.gov 

  

Thanking you in advance for taking the time to thoroughly review all the questions and concerns. 

  

Best regards, 

  

  

Katherine Pagano 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

mailto:James.Graham@ncdenr.gov














Hi Jay, 
 
Thanks for your explanation and assistance.  It is greatly appreciated.  Per your request, the community 
will be submitting information today for the Town Planning meeting on 10/26.  Kathi Pagano has 
provided the package to you via email. 
 
However, I will not be able to attend the 10/26 meeting and would like to submit my own 
comments/concerns in reference to the application dated 10/1/2015 that was submitted by True Line 
Surveying and Darryl D. Evans, Inc.  The comments/concerns are specific to my residence, Lot # 60. 
 
Attached is information that I would like to be submitted to the Clayton Town board for review as it 
relates to my Lot # 60 and the concerns with the presently submitted application.  There are three 
attachments/packages provided: 
 

1) Cover Letter 
2) Letter Concerning Application 
3) Major Subdivision application submitted on 10/1/2015. 

 
Can you let me know if this will be included as review for the Clayton Town board? 
 
Thanks in advance for your correspondence. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Steve Warren 
65  Concord Ct 
Clayton, NC 27520 
Lot #60 
(919) 333-2318 (m) 
(919) 550-9353 (h) 
 
P.S. – Copies of these attachments are being hand delivered to the Town office today. 
 



Steve Warren 

65 Concord Ct 

Clayton, NC 27520 

October 19, 2015 

Mr. McLeod 

Planner 

Town of Clayton 

111 East Second Street 

PO Box 879 

Clayton, NC 27528 

Dear Mr. McLeod: 

I am writing you in reference to the Major Subdivision application submitted by True Line 

Surveying on behalf of Darryl D. Evans, Inc. on 10/1/2015.  The application is attached to this 

email as Attachment #1 for reference.  Due to prior plans that cannot be changed, I will be 

unable to attend the 10/26 Planning Board meeting where this subject will be discussed.  As 

such, I wanted to provide feedback on the application/proposal that is under consideration from 

the board.  Please provide this letter to the Board for review prior to the 10/26 Planning Board. 

As a precursor to the feedback/concerns below, I would like to state that my wife and I were one 

of the original buyers in the Hannah’s Creek subdivision and reside in Lot #60 diagonally across 

from the proposed lot #78.  Our lot has had water drainage issues (as well as septic line mis-

representation) that were not fully disclosed during the sales/closing of our property.  These 

include the discovery of old drainage/sewage pipe buried on lots 52, 60, 61 and proposed new lot 

#78 that was broken during the construction of drainage easements for Phase 1 of the Hannah’s 

Creek Subdivision.  Additionally, a sink hole was discovered on lot 64 directly leading to the old 

terracotta pipe that was through my property (Lot #60). 

As a result of the above mentioned, I have concerns with the application of proposed lot #78 and 

how it will affect existing water issues for not only the land on proposed lot #78, but the current 

drainage issues experienced in the community and specific to the drainage easement between lots 

60, 61, 63, and 64.  In reviewing the application submitted by True Line and Darryl D. Evans, it 

does not appear that the application has been submitted with all complete and/or relevant 

information.  Below are the items requested in the application, but do not appear to be addressed. 

 



Mr. McLeod 

October 19, 2015 

Page 2 

1)  The following checklist items in the application are not complete and/or incomplete: 

a. Item 11 – Why is this section marked as N/A? 

b. Item 11 - Sewer provider is not provided. 

c. Item 11 – Existing use vs proposed use not provided sufficiently and is 

misleading.   

i. The last plat map of the application does not reflect the current open space 

boundaries nor its characteristics. 

ii. Lot 55 is falsely represented on the last page.  This lot was changed prior 

to the official recording of Phase 1 and should have no direct 

correlation/decision on Phase 3 or the newly proposed Lot 78. 

iii. Lot 78 does not indicate septic plan or proposed community area changes. 

iv. The wet land areas are depicted differently on the two plat maps enclosed 

in the application. 

v. Proposed Plat in application is not what was presented by True Line 

during the public meeting on 10/14. 

d. Item 19 – There is inadequate information of existing and proposed rights-of-way, 

easements, and public use areas.  Existing clear land “common” areas have been 

replaced by a combination of wetlands, heavily wooded areas, non-buildable land, 

or areas not accessible to the community. 

e. Item 29 – Location, purpose, and dimensions of non-residential areas are not 

identified appropriately and thus do not designate responsible parties. 

f. Item 31 – Proposed stormwater retention/detention features and dimensions are 

not reflected.  This is an area of known water drainage/retention problem areas 

that also is near a protected wetland and a current retention pond. 

g. Item 38 and 39, 40. – No information on landscaping provided. 

h. Item 41 – There are no details regarding the topography, but the application (and 

the presentation provided by True Line Surveying proposes swapping out clear, 

open land with combined land consisting of wetlands, heavily wooded, gas line 

easements and low lying drainage easement areas. 

i. Item 42 – Missing information on water/sewer and pipeline gas infrastructure 

easements. 

j. Item 49 – Missing existing and proposed changes to drainage structures.  There is 

currently a retention pond in the drainage easement closest to protected wetlands. 

k. Item 51 – Missing existing and proposed easements for the plan presented by 

True Line on 10/14.  Again, the application does not match the proposal presented 

in the meeting on 10/14. 



Mr. McLeod 

October 19, 2015 

Page 3 

l. Item 54 – Missing storm water management system information in an area that 

contains a retention/detention pond next to wetlands that have a history of 

drainage issues. 

2) As mentioned in parts of item 1, the plat maps presented in the application are not 

accurate for the current existing neighborhood.  Additionally, the proposed plat changes 

proposed for Lot #78 and the new neighborhood common areas do not represent what 

True Line/Darryl D. Evans Inc presented during the 10/14 meeting. 

3) There is a page missing from the packet in the “Town of Clayton Subdivision Approval 

Sub 08-01 Granted” section.  It is page 3 of 4. 

Please advice on the next steps to address the concerns mentioned in this correspondence.  

Sincerely, 

Steve Warren 



Staff Report 
15-50-01-SUP 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 

 
October 26, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-50-01-SUP 
Project Name: Nick’s Flippin Kids Special Use Permit 

 
NC PIN / Tag #: 166800-84-0769 / 05I04017 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: None 
Applicant:  Nick’s Flippin Kids 
Owner: Mooring Capital Fund, LLC 
Location: 9257 US 70 BUS HWY 
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting October 15, 2015 
• Sign posted October 8, 2015 
• Newspaper ad prior to November 25, 2015 
 
REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting a special use permit to open “Nick’s Flippin Kids”, a gymnastics facility, in 
an existing & vacant building located in a Special Use District. 
 
SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 8.33 
Existing Use: Vacant 

 
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 



Staff Report 
15-50-01-SUP 
Page 2 of 4 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Highway-Business (B-3) Vacant 
South Residential-Estate (R-E) Single-Family Residences 
East Highway-Business (B-3) Commercial 
West Highway-Business (B-3) Single-Family Residences 

  

 
 

 
DEVELOPMENT DATA:  
Proposed Uses: Indoor Entertainment (gymnastics facility) 

Buildings: 1 building, existing 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton 

Access/Streets:  Access will be provided via 2 full-access existing driveways located off of Hardee 
Lane. There are also two stub-outs located on the Northern portion of the lot. These 
stub-outs connect to the undeveloped adjacent property.  

Water/Sewer Provider: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton 

 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting a special use permit to open up a gymnastics facility called “Nick’s Flippin Kids” in a 
vacant existing building. The facility is proposing to occupy only the showroom portion of the building, which is 
20,000 square feet. The remaining portions of the building will remain vacant at this time. Currently, the 
property is zoned B-3 SUD (Highway Business Special Use District). This use is permitted outright in B-3 zoning 
districts, but the Special Use Overlay requires any tenant to go through the special use process in order to 
operate at this location.  

Page 2 of 4 
 
 



Staff Report 
15-50-01-SUP 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

• Strategic Growth Plan 
The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates this parcel of land, as well as surrounding parcels, as “Low 
Density Residential”. However, the existing site is currently zoned B-3 SUD and will ultimately be used 
for commercial purposes because of this. While the proposed use is not consistent with the future land 
use map, it is consistent with Objective LU1.2 of the plan which encourages the redevelopment or 
adaptive reuse of under-utilized commercial development. The subject parcel has been vacant for some 
time, and permitting Nick’s Flippin Kids to utilize the front downstairs portion of the facility may attract 
other businesses to utilize the remaining portion of the 110,000 square foot building.  
 

• Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 

 
Background & History  
In 2007, Council approved this site for a Special Use Permit (SUP 07-03) and a Major Site Plan request. The 
building was originally used for the site of Ashley Furniture Store and distribution center.  It was converted in 
2011 into Chloe’s Furniture, which closed in 2013 leaving the 110,000 square foot building vacant. 
 
Associated Site Plan 
Since the applicant is requesting to locate in an existing building, and no changes are proposed to be made to 
the property, the applicant has submitted the existing site plan which was approved in 2007 for the Ashley 
Furniture Store. Staff has reviewed the existing plan and has determined that no changes are needed to the site 
to meet code requirements.  

 
Landscaping and Buffering 
The site has existing landscaping that is in compliance with UDC requirements. Street yard trees and shrubs are 
provided along Highway 70, a Class “A” buffer is provided along Hardee Lane, and a Class “C” landscape buffer is 
provided along the southern property line, which is where the property abuts parcels zoned R-E (Residential-
Estate). The applicant will be required to maintain the existing landscaping as well as replace any missing plant 
material as shown on the original site plan approval. 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 



Staff Report 
15-50-01-SUP 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
N/A  
 
Environmental  
N/A 
 
Signs 
The applicant has not submitted any proposed signage for the subject property. All signs will be reviewed 
separately through the Planning Department and will be required to adhere to UDC requirements. 
 
Architecture 
No exterior changes are being made to the existing building. The existing architecture of the building is 
acceptable to staff. 
 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
None. 
 
 
FINDINGS 
When considering a Special Use Permit application, the Town Council shall consider specific Findings of Fact. A 
Special Use which fails to meet any of these Findings shall be deemed adverse to the public interest and shall 
not be approved.  The applicant has adequately addressed the Findings of Fact expressly established by Chapter 
155.711(I) of the UDC, and these Findings are accepted as part of the completed application.  
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• The Town Council approves Special Use Permits. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to 
the Town Council. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the above referenced Special Use Permit.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Application 
2) Staff Report Map 
3) Existing Site Plan 
4) Neighborhood Meeting Materials  

 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 



















I-2

B-3 SUD

R-E

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
LD

WO
OD

 D
R 

 

R-E

B-3 SUD

I-2

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
LD

WO
OD

 D
R 

 

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-50-01-SUP Nick's Flippin Kids
Request: Special Use request to operate a gymnastics facility on the site

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Nick's Flippin Kids
Property Owner: Mooring Capital Fund, LLC
Parcel ID Number: 166800-84-0769
Tag #: 05I04017 10/15/2015

US 70 BUS HWY WWI
LD

W
OO

D 
DR

  

HARDEE LN
  

0 0.20.1
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 500250
Feet

0 500250
Feet

 Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SPECIAL USE\2015\15-50-01-SUP Nick's Flippin Kids Special Use\Maps\StaffReportMap.mxd

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
LD

WO
OD

 D
R 

 

HARDEE LN
  

Low Density Residential

Employment Center

US 70 BUS HWY W

WI
LD

WO
OD

 D
R 

 

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 500250
Feet

0 500250
Feet

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay

± ±

± ±





























 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board  

October 26, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-48-01-PDD 
Project Name: NC 42 East Mixed Use Rezoning/Master Plan 

 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 167800-29-8988 / 05I04003 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: Thorough Fare Overlay 
Applicant:  Brantley Tillman, Commercial Properties Inc.  
Owner: James B. Hunt Jr. 
Location: 1430 NC Hwy 42, located at the Southeast corner of NC 42 and Glen Laurel Road  
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting October 12, 2015 
• Sign posted October 8, 2015 
• Adjacent Property Letters mailed, prior to November 25, 2015 
• Newspaper Ad published, prior to November 25, 2015 
 
REQUEST:   Rezoning 45.75 acres from Industrial-Heavy (I-2) and Residential-Estate (R-E) to Planned 
Development Mixed Use (PD-MU).   
 
SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 45.75 acres  
Existing Use: Vacant 
 

 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 4 
 



Staff Report 
15-48-01-PDD NC 42 East Mixed Use Rezoning/Master Plan 

 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

 

 
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 45.75 acres of land from Industrial-Heavy (I-2) and Residential-Estate (R-E) 
to Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU). The parcel is currently vacant and is located at the corner of NC 
42 East and Glen Laurel Road. In addition to this request, the applicant has also submitted a Master Plan for the 
site. Per UDC requirements, applicants shall submit a master plan concurrent with a request for planned 
development rezoning to govern the development and maintenance of the land within the planned 
development. The plan proposes a 240 unit apartment site on the eastern portion of the parcel, with a 
commercial/retail site on the western portion of the parcel, and a self-storage site located at the southwest 
corner of the parcel. The site will have three access points off of NC Hwy 42 East. Two of these will be right-
in/right-out only, and the third will be a signaled full access. Additionally, there will be two access points off of 
Glen Laurel Road. The one closest to the intersection of NC Hwy 42 East and Glen Laurel Road will be a right-
in/right-out only, and the second access will be a full access. Individual site plans will come in for each 
development that will be located on this site.  
 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 
North Residential Estate (R-E) Vacant 
South Residential Estate (R-E) Vacant and Single-Family Residential 
East Residential Estate (R-E) Single-Family Residential 
West Industrial-Heavy (I-2) Industrial 

Page 2 of 4 
 



Staff Report 
15-48-01-PDD NC 42 East Mixed Use Rezoning/Master Plan 

 
 
 
Development Summary 
 
The intended development plan is to develop an apartment site, commercial/retail site, and a self-storage site 
on the subject property. The apartment site is proposed to be located on the eastern portion of the property 
which consists of 20 acres of land. The applicant is proposing 240 units, with a density of 12 dwelling units per 
acre. To the west of the apartment site, there will be a commercial/retail site. This will be located on 21.26 acres 
and will be a roughly 180,000 square foot development. Additionally, there will be a self-storage facility located 
in the southwest portion of the property along Glen Laurel Road. This site will be 4.49 acres, with the 
development of about 67,600 square feet. All of these proposed developments will be required to go through 
Major Site Plan approval.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The parcel located North of the subject site is currently vacant, and the property located to the west is used as 
the Caterpillar operating site. To the South and East, surrounding land uses are primarily single family 
residences, East Clayton Community Park and a vacant parcel. While the proposed mixed use development is 
not directly compatible with some of the surrounding land uses, the master plan shows that a 40 foot landscape 
buffer will be provided along the north, east and south property lines and a 15 foot buffer is proposed adjacent 
to Glen Laurel Road (west side).  
 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 2040 
Clayton’s Comprehensive Plan 2040 designates this parcel as High Density Residential/Neighborhood Center. 
The parcel is proposed to be Planned Development Mixed Use, with a master plan that combines a high-density 
apartment complex and a large commercial/retail site on the same parcel of land making it compatible with 
what this plan envisioned.  The commercial/retail site would serve not only the apartment complex that is 
located on the same parcel, but also the surrounding neighborhoods. The proposed rezoning/master plan is also 
compatible with Objective LU1.3 of the Comprehensive Plan, which encourages a mix of residential and non-
residential uses within Neighborhood and Community Centers identified on the Future Land Use Map, such as 
this parcel. 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 



Staff Report 
15-48-01-PDD NC 42 East Mixed Use Rezoning/Master Plan 

 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to the 
Town Council.  

• When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing 
whether its action is consistent with adopted plans and/or policies of the Town and explaining why the 
Council considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest. 

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Rezoning Approval Criteria outlined in §155.705.  The applicant’s Findings of 
Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the Rezoning/Master Plan request of the subject parcel. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Application 
2) Staff Report Maps 
3) Master Site Plan 
4) Neighborhood Meeting Materials  

 

Page 4 of 4 
 













Y

R-E

I-2

R-10

R-E

PD-R

NC 42 HWY E

FOX RIDGE RD  

GLEN LAUREL RD  

DE
ER

FIE
LD

 D
R 

 MACBETH CIR  

Y

R-E
R-10

I-2

PD-MUNC 42 HWY E

FOX RIDGE RD  

DE
ER

FIE
LD

 D
R 

 MACBETH CIR  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-48-01-PDD - NC 42 East Mixed Use
Request: Rezoning from I-2 and R-E to PD-MU & Master Site Plan Approval

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Commercial Properties, Inc.
Property Owner: James B. Hunt Jr.
Parcel ID Number: 167800-29-8988
Tag #: 05I04003 10/15/2015

NC 42 HWY E

GLEN LAUREL RD  

LAFOY DR  

FOX RIDGE RD  

0 0.90.45
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

 

Document Path: \\townofclaytonnc.org\voa\desktop\hhogg\Desktop\StaffReportMap.mxd

Y

NC 42 HWY E

FOX RIDGE RD  

GLEN LAUREL RD  

DE
ER

FIE
LD

 D
R 

 
Y

Neighborhood Mixed-Use

Employment Center

NC 42 HWY E

FOX RIDGE RD  

DE
ER

FIE
LD

 D
R 

 MACBETH CIR  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay

± ±

± ±









             BASS, NIXON & KENNEDY, INC., CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
             6310 CHAPEL HILL ROAD, SUITE 250, RALEIGH, NC  27607 
             919/851-4422 FAX 919/851-8968              www.bnkinc.com 
 
                                                                                                                                                   
 
Date:  October 1, 2015 
 
 
Neighborhood Meeting Notes 
 

1. The project was introduced by Garry Walston with BNK and the purpose of the 
meeting was explained. 

2. There was only one adjacent property owner in attendance at the meeting. 
3. The purpose of the rezoning was explained and the different components of the 

development were introduced. 
4. BNK presented the rezoning plan as well as the development plans for the self-

storage facility and the apartments. 
5. Jim Dempster (neighbor) expressed concern with regards to stormwater leaving the 

site adjacent to his property.  BNK explained that stormwater would be controlled to 
pre-development levels and indicated that there are rules in place to protect 
downstream property owners from increased run-off.  The developer and BNK 
agreed to meet on-site with Jim Dempster to discuss his concerns and address any 
run-off issues during the Site Plan Phase of the development. 

6. Brantley Tillman briefly discussed plans for the future shopping/retail portion of the 
development and presented preliminary building elevations for the self-storage 
facility.  

 

B N K 

http://www.bnkinc.com/






 
 
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Board  
2016 Meetings 

(Adopted ___________) 
 

  
January 25, 2016 

February 22, 2016 

March 28, 2016  

April 25, 2016 

May 23, 2016 

June 27, 2016 

July 25, 2016 

August 22, 2016 

September 26, 2016 

October 24, 2016 

November 28, 2016 

December 20, 2016 

Meetings are held the fourth Monday of the month at 6 PM in the Council Chambers located at  
111 East Second Street, unless otherwise noted.* 

 
In accordance with NC GS 143-318.10, this is an official meeting of the board and it is open to 

the public.   
 

Clayton - Premier Community for Active Families 
www.townofclaytonnc.org 


	AGENDA
	TOWN OF CLAYTON PLANNING BOARD MEETING
	Monday, October 26, 2015
	6:00 PM
	TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	111 E. SECOND STREET
	For Information: (919) 553-5002
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	IV. REPORTS AND COMMENTS
	V. OLD BUSINESS
	VI. NEW BUSINESS
	VII. INFORMAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT
	VIII. ADJOURN
	02_Operations Expansion_Staff Report and Supporting Docs.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting Letter & Minutes.pdf
	Meeting Minutes- Ops Center
	Neighborhood Meeting Letter


	03_Hannahs Ck Lot 78 - 13-106-01-SD.p Staff Report and Supporting Docs.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting package from applicant.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting package.pdf
	Adams & Hodge Eng..pdf
	VantageSouth Bank.pdf
	Kohn-Ell statements.pdf

	Approval Letter - MSD 2014-07 Hannahs Creek.pdf
	Re:  MSD 2014-07 Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Minor Modification

	Hannah's Creek - Community letters.pdf
	Hannah's Creek -Community plea.pdf
	Hannahs Creek Community Letter_10192015_final.pdf
	True Line Meeting Minutes_10142015_final2.pdf
	HC petition.pdf

	Hannah's Creek - resident Katherine Pagano.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Kathi Pagano.pdf
	-----Original Message----- From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com> To: jwmcleod <jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org> Sent: Mon, Oct 19, 2015 4:42 pm Subject: Proposed Lot 78, Hannah's Creek Lot 52 submitting questions and concerns for Oct 26 Hearing

	Attachment #2 - HTR Marketing .pdf

	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve Warren.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve Warren.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve_Warren letter - Lot60.pdf


	05_NC 42 East Mixed Use 15-48-01-PDD Staff Report and Supporting Docs.pdf
	2nd Submittal- September 30th.pdf
	hunt1
	hunt2

	NeighborhoodMeetingPacket.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting Letter (2)
	Neighborhood meeting minutes
	Neighborhood meeting Sign In Sheet





